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President’s Report
I am happy to report that the SKA is back in full swing following the
completion of the construction works to refurbish the old building. I thank
members for their patience during the period the building and its facilities
were unavailable for their use. I also wish to thank them for their continuous
support and understanding as we pushed through the construction and
subsequent outfitting of the building to put it back in operation.
Moghul Mahal Restaurant was opened in February 2017 with the return of
the afternoon buffet and dining, and the lounge is now open for members to
mingle and have a relaxing drink. We encourage members to patronise the
restaurant and bring your family and friends for lunch and dinner. The gym,
operated by Gold GYM, was opened in March 2017. Please use the gym
and participate in healthy lifestyle activities, bringing your children and
setting yourself as role models to inculcate in them a love for sports and
exercise, a much needed activity in a time when many children are glued to
their computer games and social media. Members enjoy special discounts
to use these facilities. The new building has two ballrooms, a function hall
and a dance studio for social and cultural activities. The function halls have
progressively seen an uptake in bookings. An electronic car park
management system has been implemented, also with discounted rates for
members who have registered their In-vehicle Unit (IU) with the SKA office.
Please register if you have not done so.
The SKA website has been revamped to update its contents with new
features. The website will be progressively updated to include electronic
forms and payments for online booking capabilities. In the meantime,
please do check out the photograph gallery for the latest events that took
place in the last few months, and look at the upcoming activities.
SKA’s signature event, the Vesakhi Mela, was held this year over 3 days
on 14, 15 and 16 April 2017 to make it an even more inclusive event
catering to the different communities, both local and foreign:
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a. A cultural evening presented by Apeejay College of Fine Arts from
Punjab performed a family drama, skits and Punjabi folk songs on 14
April at the new 2nd storey hall.
b. The Sports and Cultural Fair was held on 15 April. For the first time,
this segment of the Mela was planned to feature very strongly the
participation of the students attending the Punjabi language classes with
the Singapore Sikh Education Foundation (SSEF). We thank SSEF for
this collaboration which we plan to continue for future events.
c. A cultural programme was specifically set aside on 16 April for our
brothers and sisters from Punjab who are working in Singapore.
Entertainment was provided by the Apeejay College troupe,
performances by local bhangra group and our talented workers from the
Punjab.
The Ladies Wing of SKA continues to play a key role in meeting the social
and cultural needs of our community. In January 2017, the Ladies Wing
organised LOHRI at the new SKA premises. It was a packed event with
overwhelming and enthusiastic participation. In March 2017, the Ladies
Wing celebrated International Women’s Day and the 10th Anniversary of its
flagship programme - Chair Yoga. The event was attended by more than
200 women from the Sikh community and 20 invited women from other
racial groups. We thank the Ladies Wing for its commitment to meeting the
needs of the women in our community.
The 23rd Annual Graduation for K2 pupils was held on 11 October 2016 at
Umar Pullavar Tamil Language Centre. The Party cum Concert was held
on 22 October 2016 for the Nursery and K1 pupils. In January 2017, we
started the Saturday kindergarten class for our SSEF Punjabi children at
the Khalsa Kindergarten which provides purpose-built kindergarten
facilities. We are happy to partner with SSEF for the education of our
children.
The 66th Gurdwara Cup & Sikh Festival of Sports & was held in Kuala
Lumpur (KL) from 7 to 10 June 2017 hosted by the Royal Malaysia Police
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Sikh Sports Association under the auspices of the Malaysia Singapore Sikh
Sports Council. The Singapore contingent took part in Hockey, Soccer,
Netball and Golf. They emerged champion in Soccer Juniors, runners-up in
Soccer Senior, and second runners-up in netball. The hockey seniors
emerged fourth place after a fierce battle with KL for the third placing. This
year saw the introduction of females in the junior categories and the hockey
junior team consisted of two female players.
A futsal friendly game was held on 24 June 2017 at the SKA Futsal pitch in
memory of the late Santokh Singh Grewal who passed away on 21 June
2016. The 8-a side game saw the veterans leading 8-5 against the
Youngsters team.
On 11 March 2017, we partnered with SSEF to hold the 7th Young Khalsa
Sports day at the SKA for the Punjabi school children.
In closing, I thank all members of SKA for their unstinting support and
encouragement during the journey to refurbish the old building. We are
grateful to those members and others who donated financially towards the
building refurbishment.
Special thanks go to the Lee Foundation for their very generous donation. It
is indeed very gratifying that we have such supporters from outside the
Sikh community who have the interest of the SKA at heart.
As the work does not stop with the completion of the main building works,
we invite further donations to outfit and furnish the building to enhance the
facilities. This is your Association and your building, and we want to work
with you to make SKA the vibrant hub of our community.
Wahe Guru Ji Ka Khalsa, Wahe Guru JI KI Fateh
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Rule 2 (c)

Rule 2. MEMBERSHIP
ELIGIBILITY

Rule 1. MEMBERSHIP
CATEGORIES

Rule No.
Section II –
Membership

(i)- To be deleted

i.

(i),(ii),(iv)-To be deleted

i.

Term membership shall be open to
Sikhs who are visiting Singapore
for a short stay or for Sikhs who
need to book the Association’s
main premises. Term Members
shall have all the privileges and
liabilities of an Ordinary Member

Rule 2(c)

Rule 2 (c) TERMS MEMBERS

Ordinary membership shall be
open only to Sikhs. Ordinary
Members shall have all the
privileges and liabilities of a Life
Member.

Rule 2(b)

Rule 1(a)
i. Sikhs - Life, Corporate Life,
Sports, Junior

Proposed Rule

Rule 2(b) ORDINARY MEMBERS

Rule 1(a)
i. Sikhs – Life, Corporate Life, Ordinary,
Term, Lady, Sports, Junior

Existing Rule

PROPOSED CHANGES TO RULES & REGULATIONS

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION

The “Ordinary”, “Lady” and
“Term” membership have not
been utilized by any individual
since its introduction in 1997.
Further most ladies are existing
life members and some also
serve on the SKA MC.

Reason for Amendment
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Rule 2 (d)

Rule 2(d)
(i),(ii),(iii)- To be deleted

A person qualifying to be an
Ordinary member and is female, is
eligible to be a Lady Member.
Lady Member shall have all the
privileges and liabilities of an
Ordinary Member but shall have
no voting rights nor be eligible to
be appointed to the Management
Committee.

A Lady may also apply to be an
Ordinary or a Life Member by
paying the appropriate fee in which
case she will have voting rights
and be eligible to be appointed to
the Management Committee.

i.

ii.

In the event of dissolution, Term
Member shall have no share or
interest in the funds or property of
the Association.

iv.

Rule 2 (d) LADY MEMBERS

Term membership shall be valid
for a period of three months only,
starting from the month in which
the function is held, whichever
later, and is not renewable, except
in special circumstances as
approved by the Management
Committee.

ii.

but shall have no voting rights nor
be eligible to be appointed to the
Management Committee.
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Rule 4(d)

Rule 4(c) ORDINARY MEMBERSHIP
(Amendment No. 1/03)

Rule 4(c)

A Term Member shall pay a onetime
entrance fee as determined by the
Management Committee each time he is
admitted as a Term member for a period of
three months, but is not required to pay
any annual subscription.

Rule 4(d) TERM MEMBERSHIP

The committee shall have the power to
approve a person to be an Ordinary
Member on his/her paying the sum of
$250.00 as entrance fee. An Ordinary
Member shall be required to pay an annual
fee subscription.

Rule 3 (e) The names of all new members
shall be posted on the Notice Board of the
Association for two weeks after approval of
their application.

In the event of dissolution, Lady
Members shall have no share or
interest in the funds or property of
the Association.

Rule 3(e)

iii.

Rule 4(d) - To be deleted

Rule 4(c) - To be deleted

The names of all new members shall
be posted on the website of the
Association for two weeks after
approval of their application.

Rule 3 (e) to read:
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Rule 4k(i) & (ii)

Rule 4(i)

Rule 4(h)

Rule 4(e)

(i)

The annual subscription for all
categories of membership and the
entrance fee for Term members,
Lady Members, Sports members,

The Management Committee shall
have the discretion to determine the
fees payable for each category of
membership and to increase the
fees for the various category of

Rule 4(k)(i) to read:

An Associate Member shall pay an
entrance fee and an annual fee as
determined by the Management
Committee and such member shall
have no voting rights nor be eligible
to be appointed to the Management
Committee.

An Associate Member shall pay an
entrance fee and an annual fee as
determined by the Management
Committee.

Rule 4k CHANGE OF ENTRANCE FEE or
ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION

Rule 4(i) to read:

To give MC discretion to
determine the fees payable.

The Committee shall have the To delink the quantum of fee for
power to appoint a person to be an Associate Life member from Life
Associate Life Member on his member.
paying an entrance fee of $2,000
(Dollars Two Thousand Only). An
Associate Life Member shall not be
required to pay any subscription and
such member shall have no voting
rights nor be eligible to be appointed
to the Management Committee.

Rule 4(h) to read:

Rule 4(e) - To be deleted

Rule 4(i) ASSOCIATE MEMBERSHIP

The Committee shall have the power to
appoint a person to be an Associate Life
member on his paying an entrance fee
equal to 1.5 times the fee payable by a
Sikh Life member. As Associate Life
member shall not be required to pay any
subscription.

Rule 4(h) ASSOCIATE LIFE
MEMBERSHIP

A Lady member shall pay an entrance fee
and an annual fee as determined by the
Management Committee.

Rule 4(e) LADY MEMBERSHIP
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Section IV – Accounts
Rule 4

Rule 3(a)(iii)

Rule 1(a)xi

Section V –
Management Committee

New paragraph Rule 4(ii) to be

(a) The current Rule 4 to be
renumbered as Rule 4(i).

All monies received shall be deposited in a
local Bank approved by the Management
Committee and all cheques drawn there on
shall be signed by the President and the

(b)

Rule 4 to read:

Power to approve expenditure up to
$100,000 (Dollars One Hundred
Thousand Only) per item. For any
sum in excess of this amount prior
approval has to be obtained at a
General Meeting. This limit may be
changed at each Annual General
Meeting for the following year.

Powers to approve expenditure up to
$50,000 (Dollars Fifty Thousand Only) per
item: For any sum in excess of this
amount, prior approval has to be obtained
at a General Meeting. This limit may be
changed at each Annual General Meeting
for the following year.

Rule 4 – Banking Accounts

Rule 3(a)(iii) to read:

Rule 3(a)(iii)

Chairman Media & Communications
Committee

Chairman Publication & Communications
Committee

“Notwithstanding Rule 4(k)(i) the
Management Committee shall have
the discretion to reduce the fees for
the Sports and Junior Membership
to an amount that is reasonable from
time to time at their sole discretion.”

Rule 4k(ii) To be deleted and new
clause to read:

Rule 1(a)(xi) to read:

The entrance fee for Life
Members, Corporate Life
members, Ordinary members and
Associate Life members may be
changed at an Annual General
Meeting or at Extra-Ordinary
Genera Meeting called for this
purpose.

membership to an amount that is
reasonable from time to time at their
sole discretion.

Rule 1(a)(xi)

(ii)

Junior members and Associate
members may be changed by the
Management Committee by giving
30 days’ notice to the members.

To facilitate Electronic Banking

Ever since the existing Rules
were introduced and approved in
1997 operating and maintenance
costs have escalated.
Accordingly, the proposal to
empower the MC to approve
expenses up to S$100,000.00
per item caters to these rising
costs.

To cover all aspects of Media.
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The paragraph following the
deleted paragraph will be
renumbered accordingly as
follows: -

Paragraphs (e), (f), (g), (h) and (i)
of Section II – Membership Rule 2
to be renumbered (b), (c), (d), (e)
and (f) accordingly.

Paragraphs (f), (g), (h), (i), (j), (k)
and (l) of Section II – Member Rule
4 to be renumbered (c), (d), (e), (f),
(h) and (i) accordingly.

To assist in the interpretation of
the SKA Rules and Regulation
wherever in the SKA Rules and

1(a)

(i)

(ii)

(2)

Consequential Amendments

General Treasurer. In the absence of the
President one of the Vice-Presidents who
shall be nominated by the Management
Committee for this purpose shall act for
him. In the absence of the General
Treasurer, the General Secretary shall act
for him.
“If the Management Committee
decides to operate all or part of its
financial matters on internet
banking it shall first discuss the
process with the relevant bank and
as a minimum shall make
provision, in conjunction with the
Bank, to ensure that two or more of
the aforesaid signatories stated in
Rule 4(i) shall approve the
payments made by the SKA
through the internet.”

inserted as follows:

To renumber the deleted
paragraphs and delete the
category of membership in the
Rules deleted by the
Amendments.
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The words “an ordinary or” shall be
deleted in Rule 2(e)(ii); Rule
2(f)(ii).

The words “or ordinary” and
“ordinary or” and “and ordinary”
and “ordinary and” in Section II –
Membership Rule 2(g)(i), Rule
3(a), Rule 4(f), Rule 4(g); Section
III – General Meetings Rule 2(b);
Rule 3(a); Rule 5(a); Section V –
Management Committee Rule
1(b)and (e), Rule 2(b) and (k) and
Rule 3(a), Rule 5(a) to be deleted.

Rule 2(e)(i) and Rule 2(f)(i) of
Section II – Membership are
amended by deleting “ordinary”
and substituting there for “life”.

(i)

(ii)

(3)

Regulations the deleted
membership category appears, it is
hereby approved that such
category will be deleted
accordingly and the said rule shall
be read without reference to the
deleted words in the said Rule.

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVIEW
Income & Expenditure
July to December 2016
1,400,000.00
1,200,000.00
1,000,000.00
800,000.00
600,000.00
400,000.00
200,000.00
-

12 months to
June 2016

6 months to Dec
2016

Income

464,543.00

1,323,214.00

Expenditure

594,784.00

240,117.00

Summary of Operating Revenue and Expenditure
st

The summary of operating revenues and expenditures for the year is for a period of 6 months from 1
st
July 2016 to 31 December 2016, as the financial year of the Association has changed to the calendar
st
year basis to begin from the 1 of January 2017. The comparative figures in the audit report are for a
period of 12 months.

The Association’s revenue streams throughout the current 6 months are limited to the operations of the
fruit machines as well as the income from Khalsa Kindergarten. Of significance in the total income is the
donation received for the building fund namely from Lee Foundation for an amount of S$1 million.
The revenue from the fruit machines for the 6 month period continues to decline due to accessibility
issues as a direct result of the ongoing major renovations. On average there has been a 9% reduction of
income from the fruit machines if the income for the 6 months is projected for a 12 month period as
compared to the previous financial year.
Khalsa Kindergarten has shown an improvement in gross earnings for the 6 month period as compared to
the last financial year due largely to an increase in the fees.
Income from the function Halls commenced from December 2016 onwards with a contribution of
S$14,200.00.
Fixed Assets and Building Renovation
All Fixed assets for Plant and Equipment of the Association have been written off with the exception of
the fruit machines as the major renovation was in progress as at the financial year end date. As at this
date the total renovation cost spent is capitalised as construction in progress at an amount of
S$,10,088,848.00. Also as at the balance sheet date, there are capital commitments for the construction
to the tune of S$1,811,152.00.
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SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION
REPORT OF THE SKA BOARD OF TRUSTEES
GENERAL
The Singapore Khalsa Association Trust Fund was set up in 1959 with the objective to
invest some of the funds in the Association (savings) to provide for its longer terms growth
requirements. The initial capital of the Trust Fund was $25,000 and was put under the charge
of the SKA Trustees. Over the years SKA contributed towards this capital with further
injections of $99,000 in the 1970s and $453,000 in the 1980s making a total of $577,000 in
capital. The balance of the growth of the Trust Fund has come from reinvestment of its
earnings and capital growth of the investments made.
The current Board of Trustees comprises:
Chairman:
Vice Chairman:
Secretary:
Members:

S. Gurdip Singh Usma
Col (Retd) Gurcharan Singh Sekhon
S. Ajit Singh
LTC (Retd) Jaswant Singh Gill
S. Jagjit Singh Sekhon
S. Balbeer Singh Mangat
S. Param Ajeet Singh Bal

In January 2016, the SKA Board of Trustees appointed an Investment Committee (appointment
for a period of 3 years) to advise the Trustees in connection with the management of the Trust
Fund assets.
The members of the Investment Committee are as follows:
Chairman
Secretary
Members

S. Gurdip Singh Usma
S. Balbeer Singh Mangat
Col (Retd) Gurcharan Singh Sekhon
S. Inderjit Singh
S. Mandeep Singh Nalwa
S. Rasik Singh Ahuja
S. Harpreet Singh

The Investment Committee met twice during the past year together with our bankers; primarily
to decide on which investments they recommendations the Trustees should liquidate to meet
the cash needs of the Association.
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VALUE OF SKA TRUST FUND
Nearly all the investments of SKA Trustees are in shares of public listed companies quoted on
the Singapore Stock Exchange and the general philosophy of the Trustees in selecting its
investment companies has been that of conservatism and long term view. The Investment
Committee, in consultation with our investment bankers provides the guidance in the
investment decisions made by Trustees for the Trust Fund.
The value of the SKA Investment Fund had steadily grown over time and had grown to almost
$14 million as of the end of the Fiscal Year 2014. Most of this growth has come in the last 15
years or so resulting from the general growth of the Singapore economy, the growth of the
investment companies and the bullish stock market. The financial crisis in 2008 did result in a
drop to around $8.5 million, but the subsequent stock market recovery has more than recovered
that shortfall.
At the various SKA General Meetings, the members had approved major renovations to the
SKA Building amounting to $11.9 million, of which the Trustees would fund $9.2 million.
This amount has been fully disbursed with $2 million being disbursed in Fiscal 2015, $5.5
million in Fiscal 2015 and $1.5 million during the current period. The remaining $0.2 million
was disbursed just after year end. The drop in the Trust Fund value over the past few years
primarily reflects this disbursement of funds.
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SKA TRUST FUND NET OPERATING INCOME
The SKA Investment Fund has been steadily generating dividend income over the years. Our
general strategy over the recent years has been to invest more in defensive and higher dividend
yielding stocks, which has helped improve this source of income. In view of this, we have been
able to generate a steady flow of dividend income of approx 4% on an annual basis. The drop
in Operating Income in 2015 and 2016 is due to the reduction in the value of the Fund due to
the $9.0 million disbursement for the SKA Building Renovations referred to above and in the
current period it is a combination of less funds plus a shorter six month period to December
2016.
With the significant reduction in the size of the fund due to payments for the SKA
Renovations, we expect to see the operating income reducing significantly from 2017 onwards.
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SKA TRUST FUND INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ANALYSIS
The general philosophy of the Trustees has been to spread our investments in various asset
types and with a longer term view of steady growth and reasonable yield. We have attempted
to stay away from trading type investments, which may generate better returns but at a higher
risk. The analysis below shows that our major investments are in various categories of Real
Estate Investment Trusts (REITs), Finance and Property, which are generally less volatile and
provide a good yield.

SKA TRUST FUND INVESTMENT HOLDINGS
BY SECTOR (% Mix) & HOLDINGS DETAILS
An analysis of the Trust Fund by sector / industry and the companies in which the Trust Fund
is holding shares / units as at 31st December 2016 in each of the sectors is as follows:

Sector &
Company Name

CASH
BANKING
DBS Bank
OCBC Bank
UOB Bank
MEDIA
SPH Holdings
PROPERTIES
City Developments
REITs – Commercial
Keppel REIT
Mapletree GCC Trust
Capitamall Trust
REITs – Industrial
Mapletree Logistics Trust
Ascendas REIT
REITs – Others
Ascott Residence Trust
TOTAL
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Value
(S‘000)
66

834
562
713
529
248
309
142
236
322
236
271
$4,468
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SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES (Registration No: 43-0000747-X)

Statement by the Management Committee
In the opinion of the Management Committee,
(a) the accompanying statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
financial position, statement of changes in funds, statement of cash flows, and notes thereto
are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Singapore Khalsa
Association (the “Association”) and its Trustees as at 31 December 2016 and of the results,
changes in funds and cash flows of the Association and its Trustee for the reporting period
from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016; and
(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Association and
its Trustees will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Management Committee approved and authorised these financial statements on the date of this
statement.

On behalf of the Management Committee,

...........................................………....
Mohinder Singh
President

...........................................………....
Gurrinder Singh Johal
Vice President

...........................................………....
Sukhbir Singh
General Secretary

...........................................………....
Darshan Singh
General Treasurer

15 June 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Khalsa Association (the
“Association”) and its Trustees, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the reporting period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016,
and notes to the financial statements, including the significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the “Act”) and the Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore
(“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Association and its Trustees as at
31 December 2016 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Association
and its Trustees for the reporting period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association and its Trustees in accordance with
the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics
for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that
they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to
maintain accountability of assets.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association and its
Trustees’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Association and its Trustees, or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association and its Trustees’
financial reporting process.
2
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES
–2–
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
a)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

b)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Association and its Trustees’ internal control.

c)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d)

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association and its
Trustees’ ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Association and its Trustees to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

3
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES
–3–
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion:
(i) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Association and its Trustees
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
(ii) there are no profits from private lotteries accrued to any individuals and also no commission either in
money or money’s worth including by way of free tickets or chances was paid in respect of the sales tickets
or chances.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Thiam Soon.

RSM Chio Lim LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
15 June 2017
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SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Reporting period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016

1.
2.
3.
4.

01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$

9

4,290
–
110,748
14,200
34,213
17,358
1,129,860
12,545
1,323,214
(240,117)

11,935
2,093
242,718
–
67,987
30,232
49,900
59,678
464,543
(594,784)
(130,241)
(53,894)

18.
19.

11

1,083,097
(17,947)

(184,135)
(49,900)

21.

17

1,065,150
(1,129,860)

Net deficit before appropriation
Appropriation from SKA trustees

(64,710)
–

(234,035)
–

23.
24.

Net deficit after appropriation

(64,710)

(234,035)

26.

Note

Association
Income
Membership fees
Interest income
Takings from fruit machines, net
Takings from function halls, net
Takings from khalsa kindergarten, net
Takings from sports and facilities, net
Donations for building funds
Other income

4
5
6
7
17
8

Expenditure
Net surplus/(deficit)
Income tax expense
Net surplus/(deficit) after income tax
Transfer to building funds

Trustees
Income
Dividend income
Interest income
Gain on disposals of investments

125,911
–
274,698
400,609

Expenditure
Agent’s fees

450,472
36
1,522,835
1,973,343

5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
20.
22.
25.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.

(4,902)
(4,902)

(14,350)
(14,350)

Net surplus
Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale assets
Disposal of available-for-sale assets

395,707
110,923
(274,698)

1,958,993
(2,982,363)
–

38.

Net surplus/(deficit) before appropriation
Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association’s
Building Fund

231,932

(1,023,370)

41.

Net deficit after appropriation

(1,500,000)

(5,500,000)

(1,268,068)

(6,523,370)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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36.
37.
39.
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42.
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45.

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2016
Note

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Available-for-sale financial assets
Total non-current assets

12
13

Current assets
Other receivables
Other assets
Cash and cash equivalents

14
15
16

Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Funds:
General fund
Building fund
Lease fund
Trust fund retained by SKA Trustee
Total funds
Fair value reserve

17
17
17
17

Total equity
Current liabilities
Income tax payable
Trade and other payables
Total current liabilities

18

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

1.
2.

31.12.2016
$
3.
4.
10,766,990 5.
4,402,143 6.
15,169,133 7.
8.
9.
41,100 10.
2,059 11.
2,123,876 13.
12.
2,167,035 14.
15.
17,336,168 16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
547,066 21.
12,300,577 22.
550,000 23.
1,860,838 24.
15,258,481 25.
1,479,770 26.
16,738,251 27.
28.
29.
44,865 30.
553,052 31.
597,917 32.
33.
597,917 34.
35.
17,336,168 36.
37.
38.
39.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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30.06.2016
$
9,334,050
5,732,157
15,066,207
237,501
16,463
366,653
620,617
15,686,824

611,776
9,670,717
550,000
2,965,131
13,797,624
1,643,545
15,441,169
73,720
171,935
245,655
245,655
15,686,824

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.

37

16,738,251

16.

15.

14.

13.

12.

11.

10.

9.

8.

7.

611,776

9,670,717

1,268,234

–

5,500,000

7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Closing balance at 30 June 2016

(1,268,234)

–

Transfer to lease fund

Transfer to building fund

–

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association

–

2,902,483

550,000

–

75,000

–

–

475,000

2,965,131

–

(75,000)

(5,500,000)

1,958,993

6,581,138

13,797,624

–

–

–

1,774,858

12,022,766

1,643,545

–

–

–

(2,982,363)

4,625,908

15,441,169

–

–

–

(1,207,505)

16,648,674

24.
25.
26.

23.

22.

21.

20.

19.

(184,135)

1,479,770

–

–

–

(274,698)

1,571,780

15,441,169

Total
$

Net (deficit)/surplus for the year

15,258,481

–

–

–

(274,698)

110,923

1,643,545

Fair value
reserve
$

18.

1,860,838

–

–

–

1,460,857

13,797,624

Sub total
$

2,064,145

550,000

–

–

(1,500,000)

395,707

2,965,131

Trust fund
retained by
SKA Trustees
$

Opening balance at 1 July 2015

12,300,577

–

–

–

–

550,000

Lease
fund
$

17.

547,066

1,129,860

–

1,500,000

–

9,670,717

Building
fund
$

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Previous year:

Closing balance at 31 December 2016

(1,129,860)

–

Transfer to lease fund

Transfer to building fund

–

1,065,150

611,776

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association

Disposal of available-for-sale assets

Net surplus for the year

Opening balance at 1 July 2016

Current year:

General
fund
$

Statement of changes in funds
Reporting Period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES

Statement of cash flows
Reporting Period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016
01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

Cash flows from operating activities
Net deficit after appropriation and before tax
- Association
- SKA trustee
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
Dividend income
Gain on disposal of investments
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Interest income
Transfer to building funds
Operating cash flows after changes in working capital
Other receivables
Other assets
Trade and other payables
Net cash flows from/(used in) operations before interest and tax
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

1.
(64,710) 2.
(1,104,293) 3.
4.
(1,169,003) 5.
125,911 6.
(274,698) 7.
2,097 8.
38,106 9.
– 10.
2,629,860 11.
1,352,273 12.
196,401 13.
14,404 14.
381,117 15.
1,944,195 16.

Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows, ending
balance (Note 16A)

38

13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.

(500,189)

25.

4,896,201
450,472
(7,027,182)
(112,053)
1,000,779
2,129
(789,654)

26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.

1,757,223

18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.

356,274

31.

1,646,117

2,113,497

32.
33.
34.

356,274

35.
36.

(1,289,843)

37.
38.
39.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(3,671,248)
(450,472)
(1,522,835)
–
76,585
(2,129)
5,500,000
(70,099)
(129,094)
(8,407)
(269,129)
(476,729)
(23,460)

1,484,005
(125,911)
(1,473,143)
(43,068)
–
–
(158,117)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows, beginning
balance

(130,241)
(3,541,007)

5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.

(28,855) 17.
1,915,340

Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of available-for-sale assets
Dividend received
Purchase of plant and equipment
Purchase of available-for-sale assets
Cash restricted in use
Interest received
Net cash flows used in investing activities

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$

1.
2.
3.
4.

40.
41.

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES

Notes to the financial statements
Reporting period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016
1.

General
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars. The financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the Management Committee on the date of statement by
Management Committee.
The principal activities of the Association are to promote and carry on amateur sports, social
and cultural activities and also promote and advance the education of students.
The principal activities of the Trustees are to hold and manage the investment of the
Singapore Khalsa Association.
The registered office is: 2 Tessensohn Road, Singapore 217646. The Association and its
Trustees are situated in Singapore.
Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (“FRS”) and the related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) as issued by
the Singapore Accounting Standards Council. The financial statements are prepared on a
going concern basis under the historical cost convention except where an FRS requires an
alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where appropriate in these financial
statements.
Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Apart from those involving estimations,
management has made judgements in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies.
The areas requiring management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgements, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed at
the end of this footnote, where applicable.
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SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES

2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

2A.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition
The revenue amount is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the
gross inflow of economic benefits during the reporting year arising from the course of the
ordinary activities of the entity and it is shown net of related sales taxes and rebates. Revenue
from rendering of services that are of short duration is recognised when the services are
completed. Rental revenue is recognised on a time-proportion basis that takes into account
the effective yield on the asset on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Interest is
recognised using the effective interest method. Dividend from equity instruments is recognised
as income when the entity’s right to receive payment is established. Income from fruit
machines is recognised on a cash collection basis.
Employee benefits
Contributions to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan are recorded as an expense as
they fall due. The entity's legal or constructive obligation is limited to the amount that it agrees
to contribute to an independently administered fund (such as the Central Provident Fund in
Singapore, a government managed defined contribution retirement benefit plan). For
employee leave entitlement the expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of
compensated absences is recognised in the case of accumulating compensated absences,
when the employees render service that increases their entitlement to future compensated
absences; and in the case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences
occur. A liability for bonuses is recognised where the entity is contractually obliged or where
there is constructive obligation based on past practice.
Foreign currency transactions
The functional currency is the Singapore dollar as it reflects the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional
currency at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each end of the reporting year,
recorded monetary balances and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in nonfunctional currencies are reported at the rates ruling at the end of the reporting year and fair
value measurement dates respectively. All realised and unrealised exchange adjustment gains
and losses are dealt with in profit or loss except when recognised in other comprehensive
income and if applicable deferred in equity such as for qualifying cash flow hedges. The
presentation is in the functional currency.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax
The income taxes are accounted using the asset and liability method that requires the
recognition of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and
assets for the future tax consequence of events that have been recognised in the financial
statements or tax returns. The measurements of current and deferred tax liabilities and assets
are based on provisions of the enacted or substantially enacted tax laws; the effects of future
changes in tax laws or rates are not anticipated. Tax expense (tax income) is the aggregate
amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the reporting year in respect of
current tax and deferred tax. Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or
as an expense in profit or loss unless the tax relates to items that are recognised in the same
or a different period outside profit or loss. For such items recognised outside profit or loss the
current tax and deferred tax are recognised (a) in other comprehensive income if the tax is
related to an item recognised in other comprehensive income and (b) directly in equity if the
tax is related to an item recognised directly in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same income tax authority. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting year and is reduced, if
necessary, by the amount of any tax benefits that, based on available evidence, are not
expected to be realised. A deferred tax amount is recognised for all temporary differences,
unless the deferred tax amount arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which (i) is not a business combination; and (ii) at the time of the transaction,
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate the gross carrying amounts of the
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives of each part of an item of
these assets. The annual rates of depreciation are as follows:
Building
Leasehold interest and expenses
Plant and equipment

-

2%
3.33%
10% to 33.33%

An asset is depreciated when it is available for use until it is derecognised even if during that
period the item is idle. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial
statements.
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost on initial recognition and after initial
recognition at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised in profit or loss. The residual value and the
useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each end of the reporting year and, if
expectations differ significantly from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate, and the depreciation charge for the current and future
periods are adjusted.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Cost also includes acquisition cost, borrowing cost capitalised and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the asset or component to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Subsequent costs are
recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss when they are incurred.
Leases
Whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease, it is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date, that is, whether (a) fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets (the asset); and (b) the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset. Leases are classified as finance leases if substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is recognised as
an asset and as a liability in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each
measured at the inception of the lease. The discount rate used in calculating the present
value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease, if this is
practicable to determine, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct
costs of the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset. The excess of the lease
payments over the recorded lease liability are treated as finance charges which are allocated
to each reporting year during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in
the reporting years in which they are incurred. The assets are depreciated as owned
depreciable assets. Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the leased assets are classified as operating leases. For operating
leases, lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is representative of the
time pattern of the user's benefit, even if the payments are not on that basis. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease expense. Rental
income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern
of the user's benefit, even if the payments are not on that basis. Initial direct cost incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

12

42

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES

2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, an annual impairment test is
performed at the same time every year on an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or
an intangible asset not yet available for use. The carrying amount of other non-financial
assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting year for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down through profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount. The impairment loss is the excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable
amount and is recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cashgenerating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. When
the fair value less costs of disposal method is used, any available recent market transactions
are taken into consideration. When the value in use method is adopted, in assessing the value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
At each end of the reporting year non-financial assets other than goodwill with impairment loss
recognised in prior periods are assessed for possible reversal of the impairment. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been measured, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
Financial assets
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:
A financial asset is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial recognition
of financial assets is at fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The
transaction price for financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss includes
the transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
asset. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition or issue of financial assets classified at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed immediately. The transactions are recorded at
the trade date. When the settlement date accounting is applied, any change in the fair value of
the asset to be received during the period between the trade date and the settlement date is
recognised in net profit or loss for assets classified as trading.
Irrespective of the legal form of the transactions performed, financial assets are derecognised
when they pass the “substance over form” based on the derecognition test prescribed by FRS
39 relating to the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer of control.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is currently a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial assets in one of the
following categories under FRS 39 is as follows:
1.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: As at end of the reporting year
date there were no financial assets classified in this category.

2.

Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Assets that
are for sale immediately or in the near term are not classified in this category. These
assets are carried at amortised costs using the effective interest method (except that
short-duration receivables with no stated interest rate are normally measured at
original invoice amount unless the effect of imputing interest would be significant)
minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for
impairment or uncollectibility. Impairment charges are provided only when there is
objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The
methodology ensures that an impairment loss is not recognised on the initial
recognition of an asset. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how
likely, are not recognised. For impairment, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Typically the trade and
other receivables are classified in this category.

3.

Held-to-maturity financial assets: As at end of the reporting year date there were no
financial assets classified in this category.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
4.

Available-for-sale financial assets: These are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale on initial recognition or are not classified in one of the
previous categories. These assets are carried at fair value. Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets (other than those relating to foreign exchange
translation differences on monetary investments) are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity under the
heading revaluation reserves. Such reserves are reclassified to profit or loss when
realised through disposal. When there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
the cumulative loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss, it is reversed against revaluation reserves and is not subsequently reversed
through profit or loss. However for debt instruments classified as available-for-sale
impairment losses recognised in profit or loss are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. For non-equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale the reversal of impairment is recognised in profit or
loss. The weighted average method is used when determining the cost basis of
publicly listed equities being disposed of. The financial assets are classified as noncurrent assets unless management intends to dispose of the investments within 12
months of the end of the reporting year. Usually non-current investments in equity
shares and debt securities are classified in this category but it does not include
subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associates. Unquoted investments are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment in value where there are no market prices, and
management is unable to establish fair value by using valuation techniques except
that where management can establish fair value by using valuation techniques the
relevant unquoted investments are stated at fair value. For unquoted equity
instruments impairment losses are not reversed.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances, on demand deposits and any
highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. For
the statement of cash flows the item includes cash and cash equivalents less cash subject to
restriction and bank overdrafts payable on demand that form an integral part of cash
management.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:
A financial liability is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when,
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and it is
derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires. The initial recognition of financial liability is at fair value normally represented by the
transaction price. The transaction price for financial liability not classified at fair value through
profit or loss includes the transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition or issue of financial
liability classified at fair value through profit or loss are expensed immediately. The
transactions are recorded at the trade date. Financial liabilities including bank and other
borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless there is an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting year.
Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial liabilities in one of the
following two categories under FRS 39 is as follows:
1.

Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Liabilities are classified in this category
when they are incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term (trading liabilities) or are derivatives (except for a derivative that is a
designated and effective hedging instrument) or have been classified in this category
because the conditions are met to use the “fair value option” and it is used. All
changes in fair value relating to liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.

2.

Other financial liabilities: All liabilities, which have not been classified as in the
previous category fall into this residual category. These liabilities are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Fair value measurement
When measuring fair value, management uses the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability under current market conditions, including
assumptions about risk. It is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific
measurement. The entity’s intention to hold an asset or to settle or otherwise fulfil a liability is
not taken into account as relevant when measuring fair value. In making the fair value
measurement, management determines the following: (a) the particular asset or liability being
measured (these are identified and disclosed in the relevant notes below); (b) for a nonfinancial asset, the highest and best use of the asset and whether the asset is used in
combination with other assets or on a stand-alone basis; (c) the market in which an orderly
transaction would take place for the asset or liability; and (d) the appropriate valuation
techniques to use when measuring fair value. The valuation techniques used maximise the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimise unobservable inputs. These inputs are
consistent with the inputs a market participant may use when pricing the asset or liability.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)
The fair value measurements and related disclosures categorise the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value by using a fair value hierarchy of three levels. These
are recurring fair value measurements unless state otherwise in the relevant notes to the
financial statements. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs
are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability. The level is measured on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are
deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting year. If a financial instrument
measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread or
mid-market pricing that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is used to
measure fair value regardless of where the input is categorised within the fair value hierarchy.
If there is no market, or the markets available are not active, the fair value is established by
using an acceptable valuation technique.
The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the
short-term maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when
the carrying amount of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair
value. The fair values of non-current financial instruments may not be disclosed separately
unless there are significant differences at the end of the reporting year and in the event the fair
values are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

2B.

Other explanatory information
Provisions
A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. A provision is made using best estimates of the amount required in
settlement and where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount recognised
is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense. Changes in estimates are reflected in profit or loss in the reporting year
they occur.

2C.

Critical judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties
There were no critical judgements made in the process of applying the accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. There
were no key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting year.
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3.

Related party relationships and transactions
FRS 24 on related party disclosures requires the reporting entity to disclose: (a) transactions
with its related parties; and (b) relationships between parents and subsidiaries irrespective of
whether there have been transactions between those related parties. A party is related to a
party if the party controls, or is controlled by, or can significantly influence or is significantly
influenced by the other party.
It is not the normal practice for the members of the management committee or people
connected with them, to receive remuneration, or other benefits, from the Association for
which they are responsible, or from institutions connected with the Association.
There are no significant related party transactions for the reporting periods ended 31
December 2016 and 30 June 2016.

4.

Takings from fruit machines, net

Income:
Collections
Expenses:
Certification and verification fees
CPF and SDF
Depreciation of fruit machine
Private lottery duty and GST
Refreshments
Repairs and maintenance
Replenishment of coins and payouts to winners
Staff salaries and welfares
NETS transfer fees

5.

Takings from functional halls, net

Income:
Bookings of hall – level 2
Bookings of hall – level 4
Functional hall - other
Bookings of hall – level 5

01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$

1,320,916

2,473,594

(9,528)
(5,949)
(11,685)
(321,401)
(15,498)
(6,329)
(799,843)
(37,255)
(2,680)
110,748

(24,631)
(10,313)
(24,072)
(733,234)
(40,810)
(26,780)
(1,301,947)
(64,182)
(4,907)
242,718

01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$

3,300
1,400
7,000
2,500
14,200 1.
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6.

Takings from Khalsa Kindergarten, net

Income:
Term fees and other related income
Expenses:
Salaries
Deepavali bonus
CPF and SDF
Others

7.

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$

402,352

727,236

(175,507)
(46,897)
(33,511)
(112,224)
34,213 2.

Takings from sports and facilities, net

01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

Income:
Managing agent fees Little League
Utilities – Little League

54,000
3,735
57,735

Expenses:
Licence agreement fees SCRC
Utilities – Little League
Other sports and facilities expenditure

(36,000)
(3,735)
(642)
(40,377)

Net income
8.

01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

17,358

Other income

01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

Starhub rental and utilities
Grants received
IRAS wages credits
Others

5,550
–
5,675
1,320
12,545
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1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.

(342,407)
(24,398)
(57,392)
(235,052)
67,987

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$
105,300
8,773
114,073
(72,000)
(8,773)
(3,068)
(83,841)
30,232

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$
26,250
11,725
21,703
–
59,678
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9.

Expenditure

Administration
Auditors’ remuneration
Accounting fee
Allocation of administrative expenses to Khalsa Kindergarten
Bank charges
Casual labour
CPF and SDF
Depreciation expenses
Donations:
- SSEF
- SWC
- Singapore Indian Association
- Istri Sat Sang Singapore
- SSEF Community Dinner
-Young Sikh Association
General expenses
Insurance
Meeting expenses
Plant and equipment written off
Property tax
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and wages
Scholarship
Security expenses
Staff Diwale bonus
Stationery, postage and printing
Telephone and telex
Temporary occupation licence
Transport
Utilities
Website expense
Activities
Cultural and social activities:
- Mela
Ladies wing activities:
- Other activities
Sports and recreation:
- Gurdwara Cup
- Sports (hockey,soccer, netball, golf)
- Young Khalsa
Total
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01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$
26,833
2,000
(36,000)
567
620
13,387
26,421
9,000
–
–
–
–
500
9,385
9,110
7,739
2,097
29,855
4,708
91,074
–
10,155
11,617
3,331
4,951
4,440
–
13,149
1,500
246,439
(31,318)
3,835
(1,062)
22,223
–
(6,322)
240,117

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$

1.
18,754
2.
3,320
3.
(72,000)
4.
816
5.
–
6.
19,585
7.
52,513
8.
9.
18,000
10.
18,000
11.
5,000
12.
5,000
13.
5,000
14.
–
1.
6,924
2.
3. 17,764
6,536
4.
–
5.
6. 59,710
7,860
7.
8. 129,403
4,100
9.
10. 21,600
11. 8,700
12. 22,182
13. 8,965
14. 7,691
622
15.
16. 26,558
17. 6,694
18.409,297
19.
20.
21. 59,589
22.
23. 15,908
24.
25. 33,988
26. 70,906
27. 5,096
28.185,487
29.594,784
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10.

Employee benefits expense

Employee benefits expense
Contributions to defined contribution plan
Total employee benefits expense
11.

01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$

362,350
52,847
415,197

569,090
87,290
656,380

Income tax
Components of tax expense recognise in profit or loss include:

Current tax expense
Current tax expense
Under adjustments to current tax in respect of prior periods
Total income tax expense

01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$
17,947
–
17,947

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$
26,918
26,976
53,894

The income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying
the Singapore income tax rate of 17% (2015: 17%) to surplus of income over expenditure before
income tax as a result of the following differences:

Surplus of income over expenditure before income tax
Income tax expense at the above rate
Not liable to tax items
Tax exemption
Under adjustments to tax in respect of previous periods
Total income tax expense
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01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$

1,478,804

1,828,752

251,397
(233,450)
–
–
17,947

310,888
(258,045)
(25,925)
26,976
53,894
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12.

Property, plant and equipment

1.
2.
3.
4.
Total
5.
$
6.
3,780,725 7.
7,027,182 8.
9.
10,807,907 10.
1,473,143 11.
(149,337) 12.
13.
12,131,713 14.
15.
16.
1,397,272 17.
76,585 18.
19.
1,473,857 20.
38,106 21.
(147,240) 22.
23.
1,364,723 24.
25.
26.
2,383,453 27.

Leasehold
land
$

Leasehold
interest and
expense
$

Plant and
equipment
$

Construction
in progress
$

703,590
–
703,590
–
–
703,590

1,063,225
–
1,063,225
–
–
1,063,225

419,352
6,035
425,387
–
(149,337)
276,050

1,594,558
7,021,147
8,615,705
1,473,143
–
10,088,848

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 July 2015
Depreciation for the year
At 1 July 2016
Depreciation for the year
Disposals
At 31 December 2016

569,909
14,072
583,981
7,036
–
591,017

598,488
35,441
633,929
17,721
–
651,650

228,875
27,072
255,947
13,349
(147,240)
122,056

–
–
–
–

Carrying value:
At 1 July 2015

133,681

464,737

190,477

1,594,558

At 30 June 2016

119,609

429,296

169,440

8,615,705

9,334,050

28.

At 31 December 2016

112,573

411,575

153,994

10,088,848

10,766,990

29.

Costs:
At 1 July 2015
Additions
At 1 July 2016
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2016

–

The construction in progress is funded by building funds and trust funds in Note 17.
The depreciation expense is charged as follows:
Takings from
Expenditure
fruit machines
$
$
December 2016
June 2016

26,421
52,513

11,685
24,072

22
52

Total
$
38,106
76,585
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13.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Movements during the year:
Fair value at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Increase/(decrease) in fair value through other
comprehensive income
Fair value at end of year
Level
Balance is made up of:
Investments managed by fund manager:
Real estate investment trust
Quoted equity shares: Singapore
Property industry
Finance industry
Marine industry
Media industry
Total investments available-for-sale at fair value
through other comprehensive income

31.12.2016
$

30.06.2016
$

5,732,157
43,068
(1,484,005)

11,975,833
112,053
(3,373,366)

110,923
4,402,143

(2,982,363)
5,732,157

31.12.2016
$

30.06.2016
$

1

1,516,171

1
1
1
1

248,400
2,108,072
–
529,500

1.
2.
3. 1,879,381
4.
5.
679,756
6. 2,096,520
7.
484,000
8.
592,500

4,402,143

9. 5,732,157

The fair values of quoted bonds are based on prices in an active market (Level 1) at the end
of the reporting period.
14.

Other receivables

31.12.2016
$

Deposits to secure services
GST receivables
Others

15.

Other assets

Prepayments

41,980
1,393
(2,273)
41,100

39,980
197,394
127
237,501

31.12.2016
$

30.06.2016
$

2,059
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30.06.2016
$

16,463
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16.

Cash and cash equivalents
Not restricted in use
- Association
- Trustees
Restricted in use (#a)
Cash at end of the year
Interest earning balances
(#a)

31.12.2016
$

30.06.2016
$

2,047,324
66,173
10,379
2,123,876

352,047
4,227
10,379
366,653

10,379

10,379

Included in the restricted amount in use, is an amount of $10,379 (30.06.2016:
$10,379) held by the bank to cover the bank guarantee issued.

The interest earning balances are not significant.
16A.

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement:

Amounts as shown above
Cash restricted in use over 3 months
Cash and cash equivalents for statement of cash flows
purposes at end of the year
17.

31.12.2016
$

30.06.2016
$

2,123,876
(10,379)

366,653
(10,379)

2,113,497

356,274

Funds
Funds of the Association include the following:
(i)

General fund
General Fund comprises of the accumulated surpluses generated from the current
and previous financial years, since the inception of the Association.

(ii)

Building fund
Building Fund is a reserve set up to meet future renovation costs relating to the
building of the Association recorded in Construction in Progress in Note 12.
During the reporting year, there were donations of $1,129,860 (2015: $49,900)
intended for the Association’s building. These are restricted under building fund.

(iii)

Lease fund
Lease fund is maintained to be used for future redevelopment purposes of the
leasehold property occupied by SKA. The current land lease will expire in June 2028.

(vi)

Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees
Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees is retained surpluses generated from Trustees’
available-for-sale assets during the current and previous financial years.
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18.

Trade and other payables

Outside parties and accrued liabilities

19.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks

19A.

Categories of financial assets and liabilities

31.12.2016
$

30.06.2016
$

553,052
553,052

171,935
171,935

The following table categorises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded
at the end of the reporting year:

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables
Available-for-sale financial assets
At end of year
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables measured at amortised cost
At end of year

31.12.2016
$

30.06.2016
$

2,123,876
41,100
4,402,143
6,567,119

366,653
237,501
5,732,157
6,336,311

553,052
553,052

171,935
171,935

Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.
19B.

Financial risk management
The main purpose for holding or issuing financial instruments is to raise and manage the
finances for the entity’s operating, investing and financing activities. There are exposures to
the financial risks on the financial instruments such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
comprising interest rate, currency risk and price risk exposures. Management has certain
practices for the management of financial risks. However these are not documented in formal
written documents. The following guidelines are followed: All financial risk management
activities are carried out and monitored by senior management staff. All financial risk
management activities are carried out following good market practices.
There have been no changes to the exposures to risk; the objectives, policies and processes
for managing the risk and the methods used to measure the risk.

19C.

Fair value of financial instruments
The analyses of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at
fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial
statements. These include both the significant financial instruments stated at amortised cost
and at fair value in the statement of financial position. The carrying values of current financial
instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments
and the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount of current financial
instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value.
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19.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks (continued)

19D.

Credit risk on financial assets
Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by
counterparties to discharge their obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of
cash balances with banks, cash equivalents, and certain other financial assets. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is: the total of the fair value of the financial assets; the
maximum amount the entity could have to pay if the guarantee is called on; and the full
amount of any payable commitments at the end of the reporting year. Credit risk on cash
balances with banks and any other financial instruments is limited because the counter-parties
are entities with acceptable credit ratings. Credit risk on other financial assets is limited
because the counter parties are entities with acceptable credit ratings.
Note 16 discloses the maturity of the cash and cash equivalents balances.
Other receivables are normally with no fixed terms and therefore there is no maturity.
Available-for-sale investments: All of them represent equity shares and therefore is no fixed
maturity.

19E.

Liquidity risk – financial liabilities maturity analysis
The following table analyses financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity (contractual
and undiscounted cash flows):
Less than
1.
1 year
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
2.
$
December 2016:
Trade and other payables
553,052
At end of year
553,052
June 2016:
Trade and other payables
At end of year

171,935
171,935

Liquidity risk refers to the difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. It is expected that all the liabilities
will be paid at their contractual maturity. The average credit period taken to settle trade
payables is about 30 days (30.06.16: 30 days). In order to meet such cash commitments the
operating activity is expected to generate sufficient cash inflows.
19F.

Interest rate risk
The effect of interest rate risk is not significant to the Association.

19G.

Foreign currency risk
The effect of foreign currency risk is not significant to the Association.

19H.

Equity price risk
There are investments in equity shares or similar instruments. As a result, such investments
are exposed to both currency risk and market price risk arising from uncertainties about future
values of the investment securities. The fair values of those assets as at the end of the
reporting year are disclosed in Note 13.
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19H.

Equity price risk (continued)

A hypothetical 10% increase in market index of quoted equity
shares would have an effect on other comprehensive
income before tax of

31.12.2016
$

30.06.2016
$

440,214

573,216

For similar price decreases in the fair value of the above financial assets, there would be
comparable impacts in the opposite direction on the profit or loss and reserves.
The hypothetical changes in basis points are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
20.

Capital commitments
Estimated amounts committed at the end of the reporting period for future capital expenditure
but not recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Commitments to construct a building as construction in
progress
21.

31.12.2016
$
1,811,152

30.06.2016
$
884,295

Operating lease income commitments - lessee
At the end of the reporting year, the total future minimum lease receivables under noncancellable operating leases are as follows
31.12.2016
30.06.2016
$
$
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Rental income for the year

120,000
240,000

59,300
–

58,800

129,300

The operating lease income represents rental income receivable for certain of the Association’s
property premises. The lease term is negotiated for an average term of two to three years.
22.

Changes and adoption of financial reporting standards
For the current reporting year new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and
the related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) were issued by the Singapore Accounting
Standards Council. Those applicable to the reporting entity are listed below. These applicable
new or revised standards did not require any modification of the measurement methods or the
presentation in the financial statements.
FRS No.
FRS 1
FRS 7
FRS 16 and 38

Title
Amendments to FRS 1: Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to FRS 7: Disclosure Initiative (early application)
Amendments to FRS 16 and FRS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation
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23.

New or amended standards in issue but not yet effective
For the future reporting years new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and
the related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) were issued by the Singapore Accounting
Standards Council and these will only be effective for future reporting years. Those applicable
to the reporting entity for future reporting years are listed below. The transfer to the applicable
new or revised standards from the effective dates is not expected to result in material
adjustments to the financial position, results of operations, or cash flows for the following year.
Effective date for
periods beginning
FRS No.
Title
on or after
1 Jan 2017
FRS 7
Amendments to FRS 7: Disclosure Initiative
1 Jan 2018
FRS 12
Amendments to FRS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
FRS 109
Financial Instruments
1 Jan 2018
1 Jan 2019
FRS 116
Leases

24.

Comparative Figures
The financial statements for 30 June 2016 cover the reporting year from 1 July 2015 to 30
June 2016. The financial statements for 31 December 2016 cover the six months ended 31
December 2016. Therefore, the comparative amounts for the Statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, Statement of changes in funds, Statement of cash flows, and
related notes are not entirely comparable.
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Statement by the Board of Trustees
In the opinion of the Board of Trustees,
(a) the accompanying statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
financial position, statement of changes in funds, statements of cash flows, and notes thereto
are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Singapore Khalsa
Association Trustees (“Trustees”) as at 31 December 2016 and of the results, changes in
funds and cash flows of the Trustee for the reporting period 1 July 2016 to 31 December
2016; and
(b) at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Trustees will be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Trustees approved and authorised these financial statements for issue.

On behalf of the Board of Trustees

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

...........................................………....
Gurdip Singh Usma
Chairman

...........................................………....
Col (Ret) Gurcharan Singh Sekhon
Vice Chairman

15 June 2017
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Independent Auditor’sReport

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION TRUSTEES
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Khalsa Association Trustees
(“Trustees”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and
statement of cash flows for the reporting period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016, and notes to
the financial statements, including the significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Societies Act (the “Act”) and the Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so as
to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trustees as at 31 December 2016 and of the
financial performance, changes in funds and cash flows of the Trustees for the period from 1 July 2016 to
31 December 2016.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trustees in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public
Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that
they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to
maintain accountability of assets.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trustees’ ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Trustees or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trustees’ financial reporting
process.
2
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SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION TRUSTEES
–2–
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
a)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

b)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trustees’ internal control.

c)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d)

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trustees’ ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Trustees to cease to continue as a going concern.

e)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

3
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SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION TRUSTEES
–3–
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Trustees have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Thiam Soon.

RSM Chio Lim LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
15 June 2017
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Reporting Period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016
01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$

Income

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Dividend income

125,911

450,472

8.

Gain on disposal of investments

274,698

1,522,835

9.

–

36

10.

400,609

1,973,343

11.

Interest income
Expenditure

12.

Agent’s fees

(4,902)

(14,350)

13.

(4,902)

(14,350)

14.
15.

Net surplus

395,707

1,958,993

16.

Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale assets

110,923

(2,982,363)

17.

Disposal of available-for-sale assets

(274,698)

Net surplus/(deficit) before appropriation and transfer

231,932

–

18.

(1,023,370)

19.

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association

(1,500,000)

(5,500,000)

20.

Net deficit after appropriation and transfer

(1,268,068)

(6,523,370)

21.
22.
23.
24.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2016
Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Available-for-sale financial assets

4

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

5

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital – The Singapore Khalsa Association (“SKA”)

1.
2.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

31.12.2016
$
3.
4.
5.
4,402,143 6.

30.06.2016
$

4,402,143 7.
8.
9.
66,173 10.
66,173 11.
12.
4,468,316 13.
14.
15.

5,732,157

9.
10.

4,227
4,227

11.
12.
13.
14.

5,736,384

15.
16.

8.

5,732,157

17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.

577,708

577,708

550,000
1,860,838

550,000
2,965,131

Total funds

2,410,838

3,515,131

26.

Fair value reserve

1,479,770

1,643,545

Total equity

4,468,316

5,736,384

27.
28.
29.
30.

Total equity and liability

4,468,316

5,736,384

31.
32.

Funds:
Lease fund
Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees

6
6

25.

33.
34.
35.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in funds
Reporting Period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016
Trust fund
retained by
SKA Trustee
$

Lease
fund
$

Capital
$

Fair value
reserve
$

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Total
$

Current year:
Opening balance at 1 July 2016

9.

577,708

550,000

2,965,131

1,643,545

5,736,384 10.

Net surplus for the year

–

–

395,707

110,923

506,630 11.

Disposal of available-for-sale
assets

–

–

–

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa
Association

–

–

Closing balance at 31 December
2016

577,708

550,000

(1,500,000)
1,860,838

(274,698)
–
1,479,770

(274,698)
(1,500,000)
4,468,316

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

Previous year:
Opening balance at 1 July 2015

17.

577,708

475,000

6,581,138

4,625,908

12,259,754 18.

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

–

–

1,958,993

(2,982,363)

(1,023,370) 19.

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa
Association

–

–

(5,500,000)

–

Transfer to lease fund

–

75,000

(75,000)

–

– 21.

577,708

550,000

1,643,545

5,736,384 22.

Closing balance at 30 June 2016

2,965,131

(5,500,000)

20.

23.
24.
25.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows
Reporting Period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016
01.07.2016
to
31.12.2016
$

1.
2.
3.

Cash flows from operating activities
Net deficit after appropriation
Dividend income
Gain on disposal of investments
Interest income

(1,104,293)
125,911
(274,698)
–

Net cash flows used in operating activities

(1,253,080)

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of available-for-sale assets
Disposal of available-for-sale assets
Dividends received
Interest received

(43,068)
1,484,005
(125,911)
–

Net cash flows from investing activities

1,315,026

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows, beginning
balance
Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows, ending
balance (Note 5)

19.

(5,514,350)

8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

(112,053)
4,896,201
450,472
36
5,234,656

16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.

21.

23.

61,946

22.

(279,694)

4,227

23.

283,921

66,173

24.

4,227

24.
25.
26.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(3,541,007)
(450,472)
(1,522,835)
(36)

5.
6.
7.

20.

25.
26.
27.

8

01.07.2015
to
30.06.2016
$

1.
2.
3.
4.

27.
28.
29.

SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION TRUSTEES

Notes to the financial statements
Reporting Period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016
1.

General
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars. The financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on the date of statement by Board
of Trustees.
The principal activities of the Trustees are to hold and manage the investment of the
Singapore Khalsa Association.
The registered office is: 2 Tessensohn Road, Singapore 217646. The Trustees is situated in
Singapore.
Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (“FRS”) and the related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) as issued by
the Singapore Accounting Standards Council. The financial statements are prepared on a
going concern basis under the historical cost convention except where an FRS requires an
alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where appropriate in these financial
statements.
Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Apart from those involving estimations,
management has made judgements in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies.
The areas requiring management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgements, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed at
the end of this footnote, where applicable.

2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

2A.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition
The revenue amount is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the
gross inflow of economic benefits during the reporting year arising from the course of the
activities of the entity and it is shown net of related sales taxes and rebates. Interest is
recognised using the effective interest method. Dividend from equity instruments is recognised
as income when the entity’s right to receive payment is established.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (cont’d)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Foreign currency transactions
The functional currency is the Singapore dollar as it reflects the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional
currency at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each end of the reporting year,
recorded monetary balances and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in nonfunctional currencies are reported at the rates ruling at the end of the reporting year and fair
value measurement dates respectively. All realised and unrealised exchange adjustment gains
and losses are dealt with in profit or loss except when recognised in other comprehensive
income and if applicable deferred in equity such as for qualifying cash flow hedges. The
presentation is in the functional currency.
Financial assets
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:
A financial asset is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial recognition
of financial assets is at fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The
transaction price for financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss includes
the transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
asset. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition or issue of financial assets classified at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed immediately. The transactions are recorded at
the trade date. When the settlement date accounting is applied, any change in the fair value of
the asset to be received during the period between the trade date and the settlement date is
recognised in net profit or loss for assets classified as trading.
Irrespective of the legal form of the transactions performed, financial assets are derecognised
when they pass the “substance over form” based on the derecognition test prescribed by FRS
39 relating to the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer of control.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is currently a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial assets in one of the
following categories under FRS 39 is as follows:
1.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: As at end of the reporting year
date there were no financial assets classified in this category.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (cont’d)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Financial assets (cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (cont’d):
2.

Loans and receivables: As at end of the reporting year date there were no financial
assets classified in this category.

3.

Held-to-maturity financial assets: As at end of the reporting year date there were no
financial assets classified in this category.

4.

Available-for-sale financial assets: These are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale on initial recognition or are not classified in one of the
previous categories. These assets are carried at fair value. Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets (other than those relating to foreign exchange
translation differences on monetary investments) are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity under the
heading revaluation reserves. Such reserves are reclassified to profit or loss when
realised through disposal. When there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
the cumulative loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss, it is reversed against revaluation reserves and is not subsequently reversed
through profit or loss. However for debt instruments classified as available-for-sale
impairment losses recognised in profit or loss are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. For non-equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale the reversal of impairment is recognised in profit or
loss. The weighted average method is used when determining the cost basis of
publicly listed equities being disposed of. The financial assets are classified as noncurrent assets unless management intends to dispose of the investments within 12
months of the end of the reporting year. Usually non-current investments in equity
shares and debt securities are classified in this category but it does not include
subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associates. Unquoted investments are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment in value where there are no market prices, and
management is unable to establish fair value by using valuation techniques except
that where management can establish fair value by using valuation techniques the
relevant unquoted investments are stated at fair value. For unquoted equity
instruments impairment losses are not reversed.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances, on demand deposits and any
highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. For
the statement of cash flows the item includes cash and cash equivalents less cash subject to
restriction and bank overdrafts payable on demand that form an integral part of cash
management.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (cont’d)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Fair value measurement
When measuring fair value, management uses the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability under current market conditions, including
assumptions about risk.
It is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific
measurement. The entity’s intention to hold an asset or to settle or otherwise fulfil a liability is
not taken into account as relevant when measuring fair value. In making the fair value
measurement, management determines the following: (a) the particular asset or liability being
measured (these are identified and disclosed in the relevant notes below); (b) for a nonfinancial asset, the highest and best use of the asset and whether the asset is used in
combination with other assets or on a stand-alone basis; (c) the market in which an orderly
transaction would take place for the asset or liability; and (d) the appropriate valuation
techniques to use when measuring fair value. The valuation techniques used maximise the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimise unobservable inputs. These inputs are
consistent with the inputs a market participant may use when pricing the asset or liability.
The fair value measurements and related disclosures categorise the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value by using a fair value hierarchy of three levels. These
are recurring fair value measurements unless state otherwise in the relevant notes to the
financial statements. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs
are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability. The level is measured on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are
deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting year. If a financial instrument
measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread or
mid-market pricing that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is used to
measure fair value regardless of where the input is categorised within the fair value hierarchy.
If there is no market, or the markets available are not active, the fair value is established by
using an acceptable valuation technique.
The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the
short-term maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when
the carrying amount of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair
value. The fair values of non-current financial instruments may not be disclosed separately
unless there are significant differences at the end of the reporting year and in the event the fair
values are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

2B.

Critical judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties
There were no critical judgements made in the process of applying the accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. There
were no key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting year.
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3.

Related party relationships and transactions
FRS 24 on related party disclosures requires the reporting entity to disclose: (a) transactions
with its related parties; and (b) relationships between parents and subsidiaries irrespective of
whether there have been transactions between those related parties. A party is related to a
party if the party controls, or is controlled by, or can significantly influence or is significantly
influenced by the other party.
It is not the normal practice for the members of the Board of Trustees or people connected
with them, to receive remuneration, or other benefits, from the Trustees for which they are
responsible, or from institutions connected with the Trustees.
There are no significant related party transactions for the financial periods ended 30 June
2016 and 31 December 2016.

4.

Available-for-sale financial assets

31.12.2016
$

30.06.2016
$

5,732,157
43,068
(1,484,005)
110,923
4,402,143

11,975,833
112,053
(3,373,366)
(2,982,363)
5,732,157

Level

31.12.2016
$

30.06.2016
$

1

1,516,171

1,879,381

1
1
1
1

248,400
2,108,072
–
529,500

679,756
2,096,520
484,000
592,500

4,402,143

5,732,157

Movements during the year:
Fair value at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Increase/(decrease) in fair value through equity
Fair value at end of year (Level 1)

Balance is made up of:
Investments managed by fund manager:
Real estate investment trust
Quoted equity shares: Singapore
Property industry
Finance industry
Marine industry
Media industry
Total investments available-for-sale at fair value
through other comprehensive income

The fair values of quoted bonds are based on prices in an active market (Level 1) at the end
of the reporting period.
5.

Cash and cash equivalents

31.12.2016
$

Not restricted in use

66,173

13
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6.

Funds
Funds of the trustees include the following:
(i)

Lease fund
Lease fund is maintained to be used for future redevelopment purposes of the
leasehold property occupied by SKA. The current land lease will expire in June 2028.

(ii)

Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees
Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees is retained surpluses generated from Trustees’
Available-for-Sale Assets during the current and previous financial years.

7.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks

7A.

Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The following table categorises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded
at the end of the reporting year:
31.12.2016
30.06.2016
$
$
Financial assets:
Cash and bank balances
66,173
4,227
Available-for-sale financial assets
4,402,143
5,732,157
At end of year
4,468,316
5,736,384
Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

7B.

Financial risk management
The main purpose for holding or issuing financial instruments is to raise and manage the
finances for the entity’s operating, investing and financing activities. There is exposure to the
financial risks on the financial instruments such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
comprising interest rate, currency risk and price risk exposures. The management has certain
practices for the management of financial risks. However these are not documented in formal
written documents. The following guidelines are followed: All financial risk management
activities are carried out and monitored by senior management staff. All financial risk
management activities are carried out following good market practices.
There have been no changes to the exposures to risk; the objectives, policies and processes
for managing the risk and the methods used to measure the risk.

7C.

Fair value of financial instruments
The analyses of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at
fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial
statements. These include both the significant financial instruments stated at amortised cost
and at fair value in the statement of financial position. The carrying values of current financial
instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these instruments
and the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount of current financial
instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value.
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7.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks (cont’d)

7D.

Credit risk on financial assets
Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by
counterparties to discharge their obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of
cash balances with banks, cash equivalents, and certain other financial assets. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is: the total of the fair value of the financial assets; the
maximum amount the entity could have to pay if the guarantee is called on; and the full
amount of any payable commitments at the end of the reporting year. Credit risk on cash
balances with banks and any other financial instruments is limited because the counter-parties
are entities with acceptable credit ratings. Credit risk on other financial assets is limited
because the counter parties are entities with acceptable credit ratings.
Note 5 discloses the maturity of the cash and cash equivalents balances.
Available-for-sale investments: All of them represent equity shares and therefore is no fixed
maturity.

7E.

Liquidity risk – financial liabilities maturity analysis
The effect of liquidity risk is not significant to the Trustees.

7F.

Interest rate risk
The effect of interest rate risk is not significant to the Trustees.

7G.

Foreign currency risk
The effect of foreign currency risk is not significant to the Trustees.

7H.

Equity price risk
There are investments in equity shares or similar instruments. As a result, such investments
are exposed to both currency risk and market price risk arising from uncertainties about future
values of the investment securities. The fair values of those assets as at the end of the
reporting year are disclosed in Note 4.
31.12.2016
30.06.2016
$
$
A hypothetical 10% increase in market index of quoted equity
shares would have an effect on other comprehensive
income before tax of
440,214
573,216
For similar price decreases in the fair value of the above financial assets, there would be
comparable impacts in the opposite direction on the profit or loss and reserves.
The hypothetical changes in basis points are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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8.

Changes and adoption of financial reporting standards
For the current reporting year new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and
the related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) were issued by the Singapore Accounting
Standards Council. Those applicable to the reporting entity are listed below. These applicable
new or revised standards did not require any modification of the measurement methods or the
presentation in the financial statements.

9.

FRS No.

Title

FRS 1
FRS 7

Amendments to FRS 1: Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to FRS 7: Disclosure Initiative (early application)

New or amended standards in issue but not yet effective
For the future reporting years new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and
the related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) were issued by the Singapore Accounting
Standards Council and these will only be effective for future reporting years. Those applicable
to the reporting entity for future reporting years are listed below. The transfer to the applicable
new or revised standards from the effective dates is not expected to result in material
adjustments to the financial position, results of operations, or cash flows for the following year.
Effective date for
periods beginning
FRS No.
Title
on or after
FRS 7
FRS 109

10.

Amendments to FRS 7: Disclosure Initiative
Financial Instruments

1 Jan 2017
1 Jan 2018

Comparative Figures
The financial statements for 30 June 2016 cover the reporting year from 1 July 2015 to 30
June 2016. The financial statements for 31 December 2016 cover the six months ended 31
December 2016. Therefore, the comparative amounts for the Statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, Statement of changes in funds, Statement of cash flows, and
related notes are not entirely comparable.
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